City of Seattle Invitation to Bid 
Addendum 

Updated on: 06/12/2019

The following is additional information regarding Invitation to Bid/Request for Proposal #SU0-4803 titled Interferometric Synthetic Aperture Radar (INSAR) Satellite Mapping Services released on 05/31/2019.  The due date and time for responses has been changed to 06/19/2019 3:00PM (Pacific).  This addendum includes both questions from prospective proposers and the City’s answers and revisions to the ITB. This addendum is hereby made part of the ITB and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting a bid/proposal.
	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Answer
	RFP Revisions

	1
	06/04/2019
	06/07/2019
	Provide historical ground and structure vertical displacement data over an area to be determined.

Is “historical” limited to the "one-year" definition noted in Deliverables Number 1?
	Yes, for this project, historical meaning one year.  The construction notice to proceed is November and we anticipate ground disturbing activity will begin January 2020.   The data needed to identify baseline conditions will include all of 2019 starting from January 2019.
	

	2
	06/04/2019
	06/07/2019
	The vertical displacement measurements will be provided from a reference date, rather than the

the calendar year averages.

Can you provide the "reference date" suggested in the statement?

Is it 2019, as suggested in Deliverables, Number 1?
	The intent of the baseline is to have data for one full year prior to construction.  It is possible (but very unlikely) that construction is delayed significantly, in which case that one year of baseline data would be referenced back from the delayed construction start date. 

For the quarterly monitoring the reference date would be construction start.
	

	3
	06/05/2019
	06/012/2019
Revised
	According to the Specifications and scope of works provided (page 3/15), point 3; “accuracy of the data must be from ±3 to 5mm”; These accuracies are related to Band C (Medium Resolution), and not Band X (High resolution). Is this what is expected?
	Use X-band only. One single satellite image provider must be used to obtain images for Baseline, Quarterly, and As-needed maps/reports.
	

	4
	06/05/2019
	06/07/2019
	According to the Specifications and scope of works provided (page 3/15), Point 4; “the vertical settlement data will be presented in ground and structure deformation maps”, does it mean using as a background layer a georeferenced city shape file showing the properties layout + a georeferenced satellite image showing the same with the InSAR information (already georeferenced) on it?
	Only a georeferenced satellite image with vertical displacement data is needed, and no city shape files.
	

	5
	06/05/2019
	06/010/2019
	There is no reference to how often does SPU want to have radar images updates. This would constrain the satellite constellation as well to be used. Sentinel 6/12d; COSMO 4 to 8d; TRSX 11d and RadarSAT 24 days. Can you please state if SPU has a specific required frequency on the images?
	Baseline Map: Monthly images can be used to create the baseline map/report.   
Quarterly Map: Monthly images.

As Needed map: Image frequency of two weeks required.
	

	6
	06/05/2019
	06/07/2019
	There is no definition of the width of extension (buffer) from the tunnel axis to be processed. Can this be provided? 1km, 2 km…? How far away will the dewatering affect?
	The attached vicinity map shows the alignment of the storage tunnel and deep shaft locations.  Need to provide map 2 km wide centered on the tunnel alignment.


[image: image1.emf]SCWQP Tunnel  Vicinity Map.pdf


	

	7
	06/05/2019
	06/012/2019
Revised
	Is there any preference between using free images (Sentinel), or non-free images (TerraSAR, COSMO; RadarSAT)
	There is no brand preference but use only X-band.

One single satellite image provider must be used to obtain images for Baseline, Quarterly, and As-needed maps/reports.
	

	8
	06/05/2019
	06/07/2019
	According to the Specifications and deliverables provided (page 3/15), point 1; the first summary report would be “anticipated for the calendar year 2019”. Does this mean that the contract would not start until 2020, or does SPU mean that the base line would be for one calendar year 2018-2019 up to the date of the start of the contract?
	The contract would be awarded as soon as practical, but the first data would be requested January 2020.  This would be the baseline data showing any ground movement between Jan. 2019 and Jan. 2020
	

	9
	06/05/2019
	06/10/2019
Revised
	According to the Specifications and deliverables provided (page 4/15), point 3; “the frequency and need for the maps and reports will be determined based upon a settlement event which may occur during construction”. The problem with this is that the tender is made around “quarterly ground behavior monitoring” as per point 2 of the same section. There can’t be new reports done on shorter periods than quarterly. A change in the time among processing timeframes will have a direct impact in the cost. Would the data updates and reports go hand by hand, and potentially more frequent updates be requested by the client when and if necessary?
	At the time that a potential settlement event (trigger event) has occurred, the team would want to request a map as soon as possible rather than wait until the next quarterly report interval.  

After a trigger event we anticipate needing a map/report every 2 weeks for a period of time to be determined.

We ask that bidders provide: 

· A price for the map/report for the baseline condition (Year 1 Pricing), Baseline map/report is a onetime purchase and we would purchase it probably in January 2020 (but it is satellite images of 2019).  The vendors will have to go back and buy historical satellite images to do their calculations.
· A price for each map/report that would be provided on a quarterly basis (Year 2 Pricing), 2020 through 2024 but we want a factor of safety in the event of a significant construction delay and so the contract states through 2026 

· A price for each map/report that may be requested by SPU after a trigger event. (Enter pricing for additional reports for both Year 1 and Year 2) As Needed Pricing - Trigger event could occur at any time from 2020 through 2026 and could happen more than once.  We may keep requesting trigger event “as needed maps” for a few months at one problem location and then stop requesting the maps.  Then request them again (on the same frequency, same maps) at second problem location for a period of time.
	

	10
	06/05/2019
	06/05/2019
	According to the Submittal requirements (page 7/15), “the city might designate page limits”, are there any?
	No.
	

	11
	06/05/2019
	06//2019
	If going for the “Electronic Copy Submittal” as per page 8/15, is there a specific template to be used (word or excel)? where can it be found?
	No, just submit the required mandatory submittals in PDF or Word using the instructions on pages 7-8.
	

	12
	06/05/2019
	06/05/2019
	If going for the “Electronic Copy Submittal” as per page 8/15, the other documents require by the Bid (Legal name, Minimum Qualifications, Vendor Questionnaire and Bid Offer form) should be attached to the proposal in the Electronic Copy Submittal or included in the same document or apart from that document.
	Either way is acceptable as long as they do not exceed the size limit.
	

	13
	06/05/2019
	06/10/2019
Revised
	Would the pdf format be accepted in the electronic submittal? is there a preferable format?
	PDF or Word are acceptable
	

	14
	06/05/2019
	06/07/2019
	There is no date for the evaluation and award decision, is there a forecast?
When is the project due to start?
	The construction project is expected to begin January 2020 and the baseline map and report would be requested prior to earth disturbance.
	

	15
	06/06/2019
	06/012/2019
Revised
	ITB States “The vertical displacement data is produced through acquiring InSAR satellite images and computing ground displacement information from the satellite data.”

Which satellite data does the City want us to use for “co17mputing ground displacement inform18ation from the satellite data”? Is the computation based on publicly available “free” standard resolution data (e.g. Sentinel-1: ~20x5 m resolution) or based on purchased commercially available high-resolution data (e.g. TerraSAR-X, Cosmo SkyMed, etc., 3x3 m resolution)?

Using one orbit only allows projection in Line of Sight direction (LOS), while two orbits allow decomposition into vertical and horizontal motion; which orbits (ascending or descending, or both) are required in the computation of ground displacement?
	There is no brand preference but use only X-band.  One single satellite image provider must be used to obtain images for Baseline, Quarterly, and As-needed maps/reports.

Images from 2 satellite orbits is required.
	

	16
	06/06/2019
	06/07/2019
	ITB States “Provide historical ground and structure vertical displacement data over an area to be determined.”

Does the City of Seattle have access / licensing rights to historical high-resolution SAR data? 

If so, with what coverage in time and space?
	No, the City does not have access/licensing rights to historical high-resolution SAR data.
	

	17
	06/06/2019
	06/07/2019
	ITB states “Provide a map and summary report for one year of baseline pre-construction ground and structure vertical displacement data (anticipated for the calendar year of 2019).”

What will be the start date of the historical (1-year) baseline?
	This would be the baseline data showing any ground movement between Jan. 2019 and Jan. 2020
	

	18
	06/06/2019
	06/07/2019
	ITB States “Provide quarterly ground behavior monitoring during construction.  The vertical settlement data will be presented in ground and structure deformation maps and summary reports until approximately the end of 2026.”
When will the construction start?
	The construction project is expected to begin January 2020
	

	19
	06/06/2019
	06/07/2019
	When will the first quarterly report be due?
	Anticipated for April 2020
	

	20
	06/07/2019
	06/010/2019
	The measurement of true vertical movement using InSAR requires imagery acquired from 2 satellite orbits. Conversely, the use of a single satellite orbit entails that measurements are made along the satellite line-of-sight, which is mainly sensitive to the vertical component of movement but may also include a horizontal component. Based on this, is the use of 1 or 2 satellite orbits preferred?
	Images from 2 satellite orbits is required.
	

	21
	06/07/2019
	06/010/2019
	Is there a preference for measurement point positional accuracy (e.g. for distinguishing between measurements on buildings and measurements on the ground)?
	No
	

	22
	06/07/2019
	06/07/2019
	Will the City provide a DTM and or a DSM (i.e. including building footprints and elevations)?
	No, the City will not provide Digital Terrain Model or Digital Surface Model.
	

	23
	06/07/2019
	06/07/2019
	What are the start and end dates of the baseline period?
	Anticipated from January 2019 through January 2020
	

	24
	06/07/2019
	06/07/2019
	What will be evaluated during the trial period?
	The trial period will begin March 1, 2020. Any resulting decision regarding performance will be based whether you are performing the work as specified in your bid, the bid document (including addendums) and the contract.
	

	25
	06/07/2019
	06/07/2019
	How will the evaluation criteria be weighted in the supplier?
	The supplier submittals are informational and will not be scored or weighted but will become part of any resulting contract. The award will be made to the lowest priced responsive and responsible bidder.
	

	26
	06/12/2019
	06/12/2019
	City Initiated
	
	See Page 1, Solicitation Schedule. Due Date has been changed to 06/19/2019
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